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To the Members of Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aujas Cybersecurity Limited ('the Company'), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023,
and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director's Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.
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Qur opinion on the financial staiemants does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

in cannection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibifity is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. The Directors’ Report was nat
made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nathing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation and presentafion of these financial statements that give a irue and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibllity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implamentation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial confrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Campany’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sa.

Those Board of Directors are also responsibie for overseaing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whather due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opirion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users {aken on the hasis of these financial statenients.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

"« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
arror, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those isks, and obfain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting fram fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order ta design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the gircumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial centrols with reference to financiai
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

= Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasenableness of accounting estimates
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to avents or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that
a maierial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur
conclusions are hased on the audit evidence obtainad up to the date of our auditer's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 1o continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overali presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial stalements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 157(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid remuneration
to its directors during the yaar in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Repart) Order, 2020 (‘the Order'}issued by the Central Government of
india in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by sectian 143(3) of the Act based an our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of these books;

¢} The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;

g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 223 from heing appointed as a director in
terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fy With respect to the adeguacy of the internat financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operaling effectiveness of suchcontrols, refer to our separate Repornt
in Annexure |F wherein we have expressed an unmodified epinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us: '

i. the Company does not have any pending litigalion whtch would impact its financial position as at 31
March 2023; .
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ii.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023,

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

4,

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, on the date of
this audit report, as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, on the date of
this audit report as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us-to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software which
has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not
applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

f/g%f/

Praveen Warrier

Partner

Membership No.: 214767
UDIN: 2321476 +BGUKK X665 9

Mumbai
17 April 2023
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Aujas Cybersecurity Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
5 Warch 2023

in terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
| account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

() (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, olant and equipment and right of use assets

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporiing under
clause 3(i){a}(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The property, plant and equipment and right of use assets have been physically verified
by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In aur cpinion, the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by
the Company, is reasonatle having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets.

(c) The Company doas not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the Jessee and the lease agresments are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i){c) of the Qrder is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revaiued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) during the year. Further, the Company does not hold any intangible assets.

{e)No procesdings have been initiated or are pending against the Company far holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a)The Company does not hold any inventoryftangible inventory. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(a) of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

{b) The Company has not been sanclioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ij)(b) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

(i) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships {LLPs) or any other parties during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iil) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(W) The Company has not entered into any ransaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{v} In our opinion, and accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any depaosits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Depasits)
Rules, 2014 {as amended). Accordingly, reparting under clause 3(V) of the Order is not
applicabie to the Gompany.

{vi) The Central Government has not spacified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of seation 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products / services / business activities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

Chartored Accommatits
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(vii}(a} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods
and services tax, provident fund, income-tax, value added tax, cess and ather material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed
amounis payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of mare
than six months from the date they became payahle,

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute,

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmenis under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1981) which have not been previously recarded in the books
of accounts.

(ix)
{(a) According to ihe Information and explanations given to us, pursuant to receiving the approvals
for rescheduling its loan(s) from the lender(s), the Company has not defauited in repayment of
its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us including confirmations recsived from
other lenders and representation recelved fram the management of the Company, and on the
basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government autharity.

{c) In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did nat have any term loans
outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix){(c) of
the Order is not appiicable to the Company.

{d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3({ix)(e)} and
clause 3(x)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) {a) Thea Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x}{(a} of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Act has been filed by the auditars in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our
audit. i :

CheHerad Aecouniants



Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

{xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable fo it
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

' (xii)) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions

| entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sactions 177 and 188

: of the Act, where applicable. Further, the detalls of such related party transactions have been
disciosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

{xiv)
(a) In our apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for
the period under audit.

(xv) Accarding to the information and explanation given to us, the Gompany has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv} of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of tha Act are not applicable to the Company.

{xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Raserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clausas 3{xvi){@), (b) and {c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core |nvestment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any ClC.

{xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xvili) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviify of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix} According to tha information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans
of the Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions , nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabiiities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance shest date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the halance shest date,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has met the criteria as
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Respansibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net profits in the
immediately three preceding years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend any
amount under sub-section {5} of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)

Charterad Accountants
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(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Praveen Warrier

Partner

Membership No.: 214767 i
UDIN: 2321476 FRGUKKX 6651

Mumbai
17 April 2023

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure !l to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Aujas
Cybersecurity Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Aujas Cybersecurity Limited ('the Company’}
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with
refarence to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Respensibifities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Contrals

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
canfrols based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the insfitute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were aperating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Gontrols with Reference to Financial
Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Com pany's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI') prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirerments and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
astablished and maintained and if such controis operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial confrols with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur awdit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such Internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based an the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

5 \We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for
our audit apinion on the Campany's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as hacessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expendituras of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
pracedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Praveen Warrier

Partner

Membership No.: 214767

UDIN: 232 4 76 +BGUKK X 665

Mumbai
17 April 2023
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Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(Z), except share data and per share data, unless olherwise statad)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Financial assats
(i) Cther financial assets
Non-current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances otherthan cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{1} Borowings

(i) Lease liabiiities
Provisians

Total nan-current liabilities

Not As at As at

O 34 March2023 31 March 2022
5 34.65 317.18
6 52742 34745
7 107.75 103.84
24(d) 312.77 486.72
24(c) 764.72 592,02
a(a) : 31.86
1747.32 1.879.07
8 (a) 6,809.28 6,049.23
8 (b) 108.16 41.66
8 (c) 48.20 2485
8 (d) 1,771.57 1,104 20
9 (b) 1,760.65 1,523.84
10,297.86 8,743.38
12,045.18 10,622.95
10 2.710.81 AL A
1" 279.75 22103
2,990.56 2,83184

12 (a) ¥ 5 =
3 396.34 3i2:14
13 518.20 406 57
914.54 718.11

(This space has been intentionally lft blank)




Aujas Cybersecurity Limited

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023 (continued)
(All amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(¥), except share data and per share dala, unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (continued)
! Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings : 12 (b) 2,500.00 1,750.00

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 1.273.08 982.93
enterprises

(iv) Other financial liabilities 14 (b) 2,560.46 2,706.41

Provisions ; 15 620.27 386.86

Other current liabilities 16 -814.39 562.88

Total current liabilities - ) 8,140.08 6,972.01

Total equity and liabilities . 12,045.18 10,622.95

Summary of significant accounting policies 1-4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ) Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Firm's Registration No.. 001076N/N500013

==y

Praveen Warrier Chandrasekaran R
Partner Whole Time Director Director
Membership No : 214767 DIN 08292760 DIN : 00580842
Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai

17 April 2023 17 Apnl 2023 17 April 2023

G a( Manish Kumar Lakhotia
Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN 01594321 Mumbai

Mumbai 17 Apnl 2023
47 Apnl 2023

2
N
W

VaiBhdv Vijay Kulkarni
Company Secretary
Membership no.: ACS27519
Mumbai

(i) Lease liabilities 8 B 219.79 115.45
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Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(3), excepl share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Not Year ended Year ended
e 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 17 29,086.35 21,294.62
Other income 18 207.26 22.91
Total income 29,293.61 21,317.53
Expenses
Cost of traded products 1,660.95 1,158.45
Employee benefits expense 19 19,780.34 15,868.71
Finance costs 20 242,97 144.32
Depreciation and amortization 21 327.38 27271
Other expenses 22 6,607.12 3,943.03
Total expenses 28,618.77 21,387.22
Profit/{Loss) before tax 674.84 {69.69)
Tax expense
Currenl tax ’ 24(a) © 353.88 383.76
Foreign taxes paid i 24(a) 385.22 106.01
Deferred tax : 24(a) {160.19) (583.71)
578.92 (83.94)
Profits for the year 95.92 ¢ 14.24
Other comprehensive income )
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or lass .
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability i i (49.70) (33.03)
Income lax effect 12,51 8.31
Total ather comprehensive(loss)/income for the year, net of taxes (37.19) (24.72)
Total comprehensive income((loss) for the year 58.73 (10.48)
Paid-up equity share capital (face value of ¥ 1/- each) i 2,710.81 2,710.81
Eamings per equity share -
Basic and diluted () 23 0.04 0.01
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-4
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiak & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of ;
Chartered Accourttants Aujas Cybersecurity Limited

Firm's Registration No.: 001078N/N500013
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Partner Director
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Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 Mar 2023
(All amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(Z), except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

17 Apnl 2023

Number of Amount
shares
a Equity share capital
Balance as at 01 April 2021 26,82,57,620 2,692.58
Issued during the year 18,20,743 18.21
Balance as at 31 March 2022 27,10,78,363 2,710.78
Issued during the year - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 27,10,78,363 2,710.78
Series A equity shares of ¥ 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Balance as at 01 April 2021 2,010 0.02
Issued during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,010 0.02
Issued during the year = -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,010 0.02
Series B equity shares of ¥ 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Balance as at 01 April 2021 1,000 0.01
Issued during the year - -
) Balance as at 31 March 2022 . 1,000 0.01
Issued during the year . . - - =
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,000 0.01
) b Other equity ]
Reserves and surplus -
Employee er
Particulars Securities Accumulated sfm;: comprehensive Toadl othee
. : 5 = equity
premium deficit options income / (loss)
) resends
Balance as at 01 April 2021 5017.22 (4,862.60) - (44.53) 110.08
Profit during the year - 14,24 - z 14.24
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes - - - {24.72) (24.72)
Bremium on issue of shares 12141 - - - 12141
Batance as at 31 March 2022 5,138.63 (4,848.36) R (69.25) 221.02
Ermofit dunng the year ) . 93.92 - . 95.92
Other comprehensive loss, net of taxes - - - (37.19) (37.19)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 5,138.63. (4,752.44) : - (106.44) 279.75
As per our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chansred Accountants Aujas Cybersecurity Limited g
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 . \&M e
W W~ @
Praveen Warrier mne/kwé Kotian Chandrasekaran R
Pacner Whoté Time Director Director
Membership No : 214767 DIN 108252760 DIN . 00580842
Mumbai M J Mumbai
17 April 2023 23 17 April 2023
NMowut, Kactshy
Gm{mﬁ Manish Kumar Lakhotid™
Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN :01594321 Mumbai
Mumbai 17 April 2023
17 April 2023 \}) -
N av‘ﬁjay Kulkarni
l Company Secratary
| Membership no.. ACS27515
II Mumbai




Aujas Cybersecurity Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(%), except share data and per share data, unless otherwise staled)

Cash flows from operating activities

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Profiti{Loss) befare tax 674.84 (69.69)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 327.39 27271
Expected credit loss 109.90 84.25
Interast income on deposits (6.51) (2.20)
Interest income on refund of income tax (45.15) B
Interest expense 247.98 144.32
Interest on oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 30.74 -
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use asset and lease liability (2.98) -
Income from mutual fund (3.711) {2.07)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 1,332.51 427.32
Working capital changes:
(Increase) in trade receivables (669.96) (1,982.74)
{Increase)/Decrease in financial assets and loans and advances (660.41) 77.24
Decrease in other assets (234.28) (1,281.27)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables {25.23) 500.26
{Decrease)/Increase in financial liabilities (145.84) 1,427.50
Increasel{Decrease) in other liabilities 251.51 (107.30)
Increase in provisions 3 294.54 232.82
Cash used in aperations 143.14 (306.17)
Income taxes paid, net : (520.01) (669.94)
Net cash generated (used in) operating activities A 3 (376.87) (376.11)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property.plant and equipment and ROU (450.87) {255.01)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 580 85 -
Disposat of Capital work in progress - 24,96
Purchase of mutual funds (1,417.00) (524.97)
Sale of mutual funds 1.420.72 612,04
Movement in bank deposits - {27.60) 184.33
Net cash generated from investing activities B 66.09 41.35
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity shares i 139.62
Proceeds from barrowings 1,800.00 600,00
Intecest pad {207.75) {36.78)
Reoaye! of borrowings £1.050.00) 150.00)
Repayment of lease liabilities _ 1164.45) (156.01)
Net cash generated from in financing activities c 377.24 436.87
Effect of foreign currency on cash and cash equivalents 0.04 (0.23)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C 66.50 (498.13)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 41.66 538.79
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 108.16 41.66
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents (refer 8 (c)) 108.16 41.66



Aujas Cybersecurity Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
(All amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(¥), except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7
Borrowings and Lease Liahilities
As on 31 March 2023

Borrowings Lease Liabilities
Opening balance 1.750.00 427.59
Proceeds during the year 1,800.00 317.77
Repayments durng the year (1,050.00) (164.45)
Interest accrued during the year 207.75 35.22
Interest paid during the year {207.75) -
Closing balance 2,500.00 616.13

- As on 31 March 2022

Borrowings Lease Liahilities
Opening balance 1,200.00 556.73
Proceeds during the year 600.00 -
Deletions during the year - - (20.89)
Repayments during the year (50.00) (156.01)
Interest accrued during the year 96.76 47.56
Interest paid during the year (96.76) . -
Closing balance ; 1.750.00 427.58.
Summary of significant accounting palicies 1-4
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
As per our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants. Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

= = R

Y
Praveen Warrier Chandrasellafan R
Partner Director
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Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(¥), excepl share data and per share data, unless otherwise staled)

1

21

12

23

Gompany overview

Aujas Cybersecurty Limited (formedy known as “Aujas Metworks Limited” / “Aujas Metworks Private Limited" (“the
Company”") was incorporated an 8 February 2008 es a private limited company under the Companies Act, 1955 {("the Acl’).
The Company had converted into a public limited company during the FY 2020-21 and has changed its name an 10 August
2020 from "Aujas Metworks Private Limited” to "Aujas Networks Limited” and on 15 December 2020 from "Aujas Networks
Limited” to "Aujas Cybersecurity Limitad". The Company offers data security management services including application
security, IT risk managemenl, identity management and vulnerability management.

The Company and has accumulated losses(including OCI) of 2 4,858.88(2022- ¥ 4917.61) as at 31 March 2023. However
there is significant increase in revenue rom operalians during the current year compared to the previous year.

Despite of significant accumulated losses, the accompanying financial stalemenis have been prepared on the going cancem
assumption, based on the expected growth in the business, cost cutting measures to be undertaken by the Company and the
performance of the Company during the cument year.Further, the Company cantinues to receive financial support from the
NSE IT Limited {"parent company") and the parent company has provided a lelter of support as al 31 March 2023 lo enable
the Company io meel its obligations as and when they fall due, should it be required. Further, the Company and ils parent
company have adequate liquid assels to suppart the operations of the Company for next one year. Accordingly. the Company
will be able to realize ils assets and discharge its liabilities as recorded in these financial slatements in the nomal course of
business.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 17 April 2023,
Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Slandards) Rules, 2015 netified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act’) and
ather relevant provisions of the Act. The Company is required lo prepare ils financial stalements under Ind AS since the
Company s & subsidiary of NSEIT Limited, which is mandatorily required 1o present its financial statements under Ind AS as
per the nolification issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs on 16 February 2015,

Accaunting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly-issued accounting
slandard is initialty adopted or a revision Ic an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use

Details of e Company's accounting polices are ncuded in note 3.

Functional are pﬂ:mlmn currency ’
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (2), which is also the Company's functional currency rounded off

to two decimal places.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liahilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classfication An asset is
trealed as current whern itis°

a) expected tc be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

b) held primarily for the purpose of trading;

c) expected ta be realised wilhin twelve months after the reporting period; or

d} cash or cash equivalent unless restrictad from baing exchangad or used to settle a liability for at |east twelve months aftar
the reporing pemos,

All other assels are Classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it isc
a) expected 1o be setted in normal operating cycle;
b held primarily for the purpose of trading

.¢) due 10 be semeqg withun welve menths after the reporting period or

d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for al least twelve mmths after the reporting period.
The Compary classfies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tas assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilitias.

The operating cycke s the ime between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has Identified twelve monlhs as ils operating cycle,



Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(Al amount are in Indfan Rupees lakhs(?), except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant aceounting policies{cant'd)

2.4 Basis of measurement

2.5

256

2.7

31

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial
liabilities involving measurement at fair value as required as required under relevant Ind AS.

Critical estimates and judgements

In preparing the financial slatements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumplions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assels, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, They are based on histarical expedence and ather
factors and that are believed lo be reasonable under the circumstance. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospeclively.

Judgements, ptions and
Information ahoul]udgments assumplions and estimates made in applymg accounling DGliCIBS that have the maos! significant
effects on lhe amounts recognised in Lhe financial statements is included in the following notes:

Mote 5 and 6: Property, plant and equipment: useful life of assets;

Note 17: Revenue racognilion : percentage of completian of cenlracts;

Note 24: Recognition of deferred tax asset; availability of future taxable profit against which deferred tax can be used:

Note 13, 15 and 29: Recognition and measurement of provisions: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an
culflow of resources,

Nate 31: Measurement of defined benefit ub!’gat[on key actuarial assumplians;

Nate 26: Impairment of financial assels,

M ment of fair val

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categonsed into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valualion lechniques
as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inpuls ether than quoled prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liability, either direcily (i e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inpuls for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inpuls).

\When measunng the far value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possibie. If the
inputs used to measue the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy the- the fair
value measwrement o categonsed in ils entirety in the same |evel of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level miput Mhat 15
significant 1o the entre measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting penod dunng which
the change has occurred.

Segment reporting
Operating segments ace reported in a manner consisten! with the mtemd reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision

Maker (CODM| The Thief Execulive Officer has been identified as the chief operating decision maker.
Summary of sidnili.unl accounting policies

Property, plant and eguipment

a) Recognition and measurement 5

ltens of Property piart and equipment are measured at cosi less accumulaled deprecation and accumulated ~parment
losses, if any.

Cost of an tem of Property, planl and equipment compnses its purchase pnca, including impor duties and non-refungable
purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebales, any direcily atiributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the sile on which it is
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

If significant parts of an item of Property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate tems [maor components) of Property, plant and equipment,

Any gain or loss on hispasal of an item of Property, plant and equipment is recegnised in statement of profit or loss.

b) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future econamic benefits associated with the expenditure
will flow to the Company.




Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(Al armount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(¥), except share data and per share dala, unless otherwise slfated)

3.2

3.3

Summary of significant accounting policies(cont'd)

c) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of Property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their
astimaled useful lives using the straight-line methed, and is generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
Company believes that the existing useful life as given below represents the best useful eslimated lives of these assets.

The estimaled useful hves of items of Property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative perods are as follows:

- Management estimate - Useful life as per
of useful life Schedule Il
Computers including software 3 years 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 5 years
Office equipment 3 years 5 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values aré reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which assel is ready for use
(disposed of).

Revenue recognition

Revenue fram operations

Revenus is recognised upan transfer of control of promised goods or services lo customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Campany expects ta recaive in exchange for those goods or services. The Company recognizes
revenue in the period in which it salisfies its performance obligation by transferring promised goods or sendces o the
customer. The sources of revenue and Company s accounting palicy are as follows:

Revenue from time and material is recognized using the output mefhod measured by resources deployed or efforts
axpended. Revenue related to fixed price contracts, where the Company is standing ready to provide services is recognized
based on time elapsed on a straight line basis over the pericd af performance. In respect of other fixed-prica cantracts,
revenue is recognized over a period of time using percentage-of-completion method of accounting with contract casts
incurred determining the degree of campletion of the performance obligation. Revenue from the sale of distinet third pany
software is recognized at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer. The solutions offered by the Company
may include supply of tird-party software. In such cases, revenue for supply of such third party software are recorded at
gross or net basis depending on whether the Company is acling as the principal or as an agent. The Company recognizes
revenue at the gross amount of consideration when it is acting as a principal and at net amount of consideration when it is
acting as an agent.

Cantract assels are recognzed when there is excess of revenue eamed over billings on contracts Contract asssts me
classified as unbiflea rece-vables (only acl of inveicng is pending) when there is unconditional nght o receive casn as pes
contractual terms,

Uneamed and deferrec revenue ("contract liability™) is recogmized wnen there is billing in excess of revenues.

Interest income

Interest on deployment of sumplus funds is recognised using the ime proportionale methods based an underlying mierest
rates.

Dividend income

Dmadend income is recogrsad 1n the statement of profit and loss on the date that the Company's nght to receive payment s
astablishad, it is probable #at the aconomic banefits associated with the dividend will go to the Company, and the amaourt of
dividend can be measured ref:ably.

Leases

The Company assesses & contract inception whether a conlract is, or conlains, a lease. Thal is, if the contract corrveys the
nght 1o control the use of ar dentified asset for a penod of tme in exchange for consideraton. The Company apphas A sngke
recognition and meas.rement approach for all leases, except for shori-termi leases and leases of jow-value assats. The
Company recognises lease habltes to make lease payments and nghmf—use assels reprasenting the nght 1o use me
undeslying assels

(i} Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises night-of-use assels at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the dale the underying asset is
available for use). Righl-of-use assets are measured al cosl, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and
adjusted for any remaasyremant of lease lisbiliies. The cosl of right-of-use assels includes the amounl of lease kabltes
recognised, mibal direci custs mourred, and lease payments made at or before the commencemeant date less ary fease
incentivas recewvea. Rigni-of-use assets are deprecialed an a straight-line basis aver the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are also subjed lo impaimment. Refer lo the accounting policies in section 3.5 (b} impairment of nan-
financial assets.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(3), except share data and per share dala, uniess otherwise stated)

3.4

3.4

Summary of significant accounting policies{(cant'd)

(ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured al the present value of lease
payments lo be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its
incremental berrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addilion, the carnying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or.a change in the assessment of an option lo
purchase the underlying asset.

The Company's |sase liabilities are included in interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the shor-term lease recognition exemplicn to its short-term leases (i.e., those |eases thal have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date), Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assels are recognised as expense on a siraight-line basis over the |ease term.

Financial instruments

a) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debl securities issued are initially recognised when they are onginated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Coampany becames a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial assel or financial liability is inilially measured at fair value plus, for an itam not at fair value through profit and loss
{FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

b) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at

a) amortised cost;

b} Fair value through ather comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt er equity investment;

c) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assels are nat reclassified subsequent lo their initial recognilion excegt if and in the peried the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assels.

A financial asset s measured at amordised cosl if it meets bath of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
a) the assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

bj the contractual tenns of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the pnnapal amount outstanding.

Financial instruments (Contmued)

A debl investment is measured @ FWOCH i it meets bath of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL

a) the asset is held within a business mode| whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

b} the contraciual terms of e financal asset give rise on specified dates lo cash flows that are solely payments of prncical
and interest on the principal amount autstanding.

On Initial recognition of an equty mvestment thatl is nol held for tra.dmg the Company may imevocably elect to presamt
subsequent changes 1 the investment s farr value in OCI (designated as FVOCI = equity investment). This election 1s mage
on an investment- by- nvestment hass,

All financial assels not dassified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described abave are measured at FVTPL. This’
includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irevocably designale a finandal asset that
atherwise meels the requirements o be measured at amertised cost or at FVOCI as al FVTPL if doing so eliminales or
significantly reduces an accouniing mismaldh that would otherwise arise.

Financial assels at FVTPL These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and lossaes un:lur"\:_
any interest or dividend income, are recoagnised in profit or less.

Financial assels al amoertised cost  These assels are subsequently measured at-amortised cost using the effective interest
) method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment lesses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or

loss on derecognitian is recog d in profit or loss. )

Debt investments at FvOCi These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under tne
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impaiment se
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI Cn
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are redlassified lo profit or lass
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3.4 Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies{cont'd)

Equity investments at FVOCI These assels are subsequently measurad at fair value, Dividends are recognised as
incame in profit er loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised In OCI and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it
is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FWTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequenlly measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or lass. Any gain or loss on derecognifion is also recognised
in profit or loss.

¢) Derecagnition

Financial assets

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it
is classified as held-for-lrading. or it is a derivalive or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FWTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and forelgn exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain ar loss on derecognition is also recognised
in profit or loss,

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, he transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual abligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company alsc derecognises a financial liability when its lerms are modified and the cash flows under the modified lerms
ara substantially different. In this case a new financial liabifity based on the modified lerms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carmying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability vath modified temms
is recognised in profit or loss.

d) Cffsetting .

Financial assets and financial kabdtes are offset and the nel amount presented in the balance sheet when, and anly when
me Company curmently nas a legam ermorceanle nght to set off the amounts ang & miends either 10 sere nem on a net pass
ar to realise the assat ang seme me landmy simultanzoushy.

Impairment

a) Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss aliowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets camried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired wnen one or mare events that have a detimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred., ' .

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following,
which are measured as 12 month expected credil losses:

a) debt securities that are determined ta have low credit risk at the reporting date: and

b other debt securilies and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring cver the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade rece'vables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expecled credit losses are the expecled credit losses that result from all possible defaull events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credil losses are the portion of expecled credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reparting date (or a shorter peried if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

‘In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company is exposed 1o credit risk.

When delermining whether the crean nsk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recogniticn and when
estimating expected credit losses the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
avalilable without undue cost or effort. This includas both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company's hislorical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking infarmation.
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3.8

Summary of significant accounting policies{cont'd)

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimale of eredit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shorifalls (i.e. the differance between the cash flows due lo the Company in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows thal the Company expects to recaive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances far financial assels measured al amorilsed cost are deductad from the gross carmying amount of the assets,

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financlal asset is wiilten off (sither partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of incame that could generate sufficient cash flows 1o repay the amounts subject to the write-off, However, financial
assels thal are written-off could still be subject lo enforcement activilies in order to comply with the Company's procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

b} Impairment of non-financial assets

The Campany's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assels, are reviewed at sach reporling date to determine
whether there is any indicatian of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assel's recoverable amaunt is astimated.
The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value In use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the eslimated fulure eash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate thal reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the CGU
(or the asset). i

An impairment loss is recognised if the camrying amount of an assel or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amaunt,
Impairment losses are recognised in the stalement of profil and loss,

In respect of assets for which impaimment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews al each reparting
date whether there is any indicalion that the loss has decreased or ne longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, Such a reversal is made only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
ar amartisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. :

Employee benefits .

a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term emplayee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as \he related service is
pravided. A liability is recognised for the amaunt expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
cbligation lo pay this ampunt as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of abligation can be
estimated reliably,

b) Defined contribution plans

A defined contnbution plan 12 2 nost.employment benefit plan under which contribution are made 1o appropnate authonties
al a predetermined rates and charged 1o the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

c) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-empioyment banafit plan other than a definad contribution plan. Gratuity is accruad based on
actuarial valuations at the balance sheet date, carried out by as independant actuary. Actuarial gains and losses are charged
to the statement of profit and loss

d) Compensated absence

The employees can camy-forward a porion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in fyture service
periods. The Company recards an obigation for such compensaled absences in the peried in which the employee renders
the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method as at the reporting date. To the extent the employee has unconditional right to avail the
leave, the same has been dassified &3 "zurent” even though the same is measured as “other long-term employee benefit”
as per Ind AS 19,

Foreign currency transaction
Transaclions in foreign currencies are translated into the funclional currency of the Campany at the exchange rales at the
dates of the transactions. ’
Manetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional cumrency at the exchange
rale at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities thal are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated into the funchional currency at he exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monatary assets and
liabilites that are measured based o nstencal Costin a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profil or loss except lo the extenl that it relales to a
business cembination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current tax :

Current lax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or lass for the year and any adjustment
lo the tax payable or receivable in respec! of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax
amaount expecled ta be paid or received after cansidering the uncertainty, if any, relaled (o income taxes. It is measured using
tax rates (and ax laws} enacted or sucstantvely enacted by the reporting date,

Cument tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended o realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
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Deferred tax is recognised in respact of temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the comesponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in
respect of carmied forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred lax is nol recognised for:

a) temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or lighiliies in a transaction that is not a business
combinaticn and that affects neither accounting nar taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

b} temperary differences related to investments in subsidiaries 1o he extent that the Company is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will nol raverse in the foreseeable fulure and laxable
temporary differences arsing on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred fax is measured at the lax rates that are expecled lo apply to the period when the assel is realised or the liability is
seftled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. )

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the lax cansequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settla the camying amaunt of its assels and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if thera is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they
intend lo settle current tax liabilities and assels on a nel basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a resull of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be eslimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benafits will be required to settle the obligation.
Pravisions are determined by discounting e expectad future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure
required lo setlle lhe present obligalion at the balance sheel date) al a pre-tax rate that reflects curent market assessments
of the lime value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Provisions for onerous contracls are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract
are [ower than Ihe unavoidable costs of meating the fulure obligations under the cantract. Provisians for

anerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and the
expected cost of terminating the contract

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability exists when there is a passible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably
will nol, require an outflow of resources. o a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent
habilities do not warrant prowisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Conungent
assels are disclosed in the financial statemeants # an inflaw of economic benefits is probable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, ather short-term, highly
liquid investments with ariginal maturities of three menths or less that are readily eonvertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject o an nsignificant nsk of changes in value, and bank cverdrafls, Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in cument financial liabiiities in the balance sheet.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indrect memod, whereby nel profit betore tax 15 adjusted for the effects of ransactons of a
non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing aclvities of the Company are segregated.

Eamings per share

In determining the eaming per share, the net profit after tax is divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
dunng the year. The number of shares usea n compunng diluted eamings per share compnses the weighted average
number of shares considered for denving basic earmings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares
that could have been issued on the converson of all potential dilutive equity shares. Potential dilutive equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the penod unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive eaming per share,
anly polential equity shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces eamings per share or increases loss per share are included.
Errors and estimates

The Company revises its accounting paboes * ™e change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide
maore relevant and reliable information o the users of financial statements. Changes in accounling policies are applied
retrospectively. A change in an accounting estimate that resulls in change in the carrying amount of racagnised assets ar
liabilities or to the Statement profit or loss is applied prospectively in the period of change.

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liability and equity of
the earliest prior period in which the error is discovered. The opening balance of the earlies! presented period are also

New and amended standards and prenouncements

Cn 24 March 2021, the Ministry of Corparate Affairs ("MCA") through a natification, amended Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013 applicable from 1 Apnl 2027 'wnich nave been considered in the prepratien of the financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Property,plant and equipment

Gross carrying value
Balance as at 01 April 2021
Addilions during the year
Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Addilions during the year
Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2021
Depreciatian charge for the year
Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2022
Depreciation charge for the yaar
Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2023

MNet carrying amount
As at 31 March 2022
As at 31 March 2023

Fl.iahl-of-u se assels

Gross carrying value
Balance as at 01 April 2021
Celetions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2021
Deorecation charge for the year
Deletions

Balance as at 31 March 2022
Depreciation charge for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Met carrying amount
As &t 31 March 2022

As at 3 March 2023

The Companty has lease contracts for buldngs ana Laotoos from whuch ds activities are conducted,

Gompitars Fumiture
{including andk Nytittes Office equipment Total
software)
446,54 0.33 22.81 469.74
232,66 - - 23266
" - 4,98 4.98
679,20 0.33 17.83 697.42
172,55 013 543 178.12
580.85 - - 580.85
270.90 0.52 23.26 294.69
209,93 0.09 16.90 © 226.92
188.30 - - 158.30
- - 4.98 4.98
368.23 0.09 11.92 380.24
180.89 .01 a7z 194 .82
314.82 - - 314.82
244.30 0.10 15.64 260.04
-310.97 0.30 5.91 31718
26.60 0.42 7.62 34.65
Laptops Building Total

- 684.23 684,23

- (24.30) (24.30)

- £59.91 653.93

28342 29.33 31275

283.42 £89.26 g72.68

= 201.89 20189

- 114.41 11440
= (3.82y 13.82}

= 312.48 31248

5.06 127.72 132.78

5.08 440,20 445.26

- 347.45 347.45

778.36 243.06 527.42

Set out below are the carrying amours of ngm-ci-usa assats recogrisad and camying amoures of lease fiabimes (included under marest-
bearing loans and borrowings) and e movements dunng the penod:

Particulars

As at 01 April 2021
Accretion of inferast
Deletions

Payments

As at 31 March 2022
Currert

MNen-current
Accration of interest
Additions

Paymenis

As at 31 March 2023
Current

Nor-current

The effective inlerest rate for lease liabilities is between 7.5% and 9.4%, with malunty between 2022-2026,

The fallowing are the amounts recognised in prof! o loas

Depreciation of nght-of -use assets
Interest expense on lease haobilites

Expense relatng ta SNOM-LerT ieases | NChuded 1) Ok BaDenses;

Total amount recognized in profit or loss

__Laptops Building Amount
= 556.73 558.73
. 47.56 47 55
- 2069 2088
. 155.01 - 1561
z . 427.59 427.59
- 115.45 115.45
- 31214 31214
- 3522 3522
N - N7z
14 61 149.84 164 45
303,18 312.97 616,13
136.77 83.02 219.79
166,33 229.95 395,34
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
T am e a4
35,22 47.56
34561 253.55
513.61 415.55

The Company had total cash outfiows for leases 1 * 154 48 for the year ended 31 March 2023 {31 March 2022 @ ¥ 158 01}.Alsa refer nots

25 and 25{b)
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7 Other financial assets As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecuwred, considered good
Sacurity depasht 98,30 103.84
Depasits with matury of mora than 12 menihs 9,45 -
107.75 101.84
8{al Trade receivables
Unsecured
Considered gaad (refer note 30) 6.609.28 6048,23
Considered doublful 207.90 180.39
6,817.18 6,239.62
Less: Allswance for expectad cradit loss (refer note 26(a)) 207.90 190.39
Net trade receivables 6.609.28 5,049.23
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2023
oustanding for the following peried from the due date of the payment
Particulars
Less than & 6 Months -
= 2 Mare than 3
Months 1 year 1-2years 2-3years ore than 3 years Total
1) Undisputed Trade Receivables
- considerad good 6,278.5% 285,48 43.82 - - &,605.28
- which have signifizan! increase in credit isk = = 207.50
145.95 G063 1.32 »
- eredit impaired - - - - - =
il Disputed Trade Receivables
- considerad good - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in credd risk - - - - = -
- eredit impaired - - - - - -
Total 6,278.99 286.48 188,77 £0.63 1.32 5,817.19
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2022
[+] dging for the following period from the due date of the payment
' Lessthan § & Months -
. - - M than 3
Particulars Months 1 1-2years 2-3years are than J years Total
1) Unasputad Trade Recervanies
- cansidered good 5553487 21313 8242 0.00 - 604821
< Wi have Sgnifican increase in credn nsk - 168.75 7154 =
190.39
- cfedtt ympared - -
i} Oisputed Trade Recehablas
- considered good - - - -
- which have significand increase In credit risk - A * = +
- credit imeaired - - = - - =
Total 555167 41313 25147 .84 - 6,239.62
As ar As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2032
&(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.18 a.19
Balance with banks
-In current accaunts . 104.24 35.78
- i depasit accoun! fwih onginal maturty upte 3 menths: in 51
-in exchange eamers foreign currency accourts Qe .08
108,16 4168
8{c) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Deposds with onginal matunty of more than thres MoNths but ket Tan Teelve momhs as 5765 24.95
on reporting date 3
Less: Depasts with remammng matunty more han 12 monins arsciosed under non-curment 19.45)
assels
48.20 24,85
8 (d) Qther financial assets
Unsecured, considerad good
Linbified revenue (refer nate 30} 1.675.89 882,73
Loans to employees 65.70 101.62
Security deposil 2781 19.08
Interast arcruad bt nel due an bank deposis 247 0.75
1.771.57 1,104.20
Ya] Other non current assets
Balances with Gavernment authorities 31.88
8 /b) Other current assats
Conlracl assels 141241 1,173.41
Prepaid expenses 22630 223 12
Advances 1o suppliers 21.54 1130
1,760,65 1,523,84
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a)

b).

<)

As at

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Share capital

Authorized share capital

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each
271,084,000 (31 March 2022 : 271,084,000) equity shares of 1 each
15,000(31 March 2022 : 15,000) Series A equity shares of ¥ 1 each
1,000(31 March 2022 : 1,000) Series B equity shares of € 1 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each
271,078,363(31 March 2022 : 271,078,363) equity shares of Z 1 each fully paid-up
2,010 (31 March 2022 : 2,010) Series A equity shares of ¥ 1 each fully paid-up
1,000 (31 March 2022 : 1,000) Series B equity shares of ¥ 1 each fully paid-up

2,710.84 2,710.84
0.15 0.15
0.01 0.01

2,711.00 2,711.00

2,710.78 2,710.78
0.02 0.02
0.01 0.01

2,710.81 2,710.81

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Number - _Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each . )
Balance at the beginning of the year 27,10,78,363 2,710.79 26,92,57 620 268258
Add: Issued during the year - - 18,20,743 18.21
Balance at the end cf the year 27,10,78,363 2,710.79 27,10,78,363 2,710.79
Series A equity shares of ¥ 1 each
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 2,010 0.02 2,010 0.02
Series B equity shares of £ 1 each
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 1.000 0.01 1,000 oot

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has threa classes of equity shares namely equity shares, Series A equity shares and Series B equity shares. All
equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity sharehoiders are
entitled 1o receive dividend as declared from time to time proposed by the Board of Directors subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Senes A equity shares camry a voting right of 57,732 votes per shares and
Series B equity shares carry a voting right of 77,121 votes per share. The voting rights of an equity sharahalder on a poll (not an
show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercisad in
respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up

on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares

On winding up of the Company. the holders of eaurty shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Comnany
remaining after distribution of all preferenual emoumts in praportion to the number of equity shares held.

Shares held by the Holding Company:
__ Asat31March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

s Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each
NSEIT Limited 27.10.78,363 2,710,78 27,10,78,363 2,710.78
Series A equity shares of ¥ 1 each
NSEIT Limited 2,010 0.02 2,010 0.02
Series B equity shares of ¥ 1 each
NSEIT Limited 1.000 0.01 1,000 0.0%

(This space has been mntentionaily left blank)
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10 Share capital (continued)

d)

e)

11

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Name of the shareholder IRumberor Percentagje of Mumber of shares Per{‘.entagf& %
shares shareholding shareholding
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each
NSEIT Limited 27,10,78,363 99% 27,10.78,363 99%
Series A equity shares of ¥ 1 each
NSEIT Limited 2,010 100% 2,010 100%
Series B equity shares of £ 1 each
NSEIT Limited 1,000 100% 1,000 100%
Details of shareholding of promoters
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Name of the shareholder L Percentag‘a at Number of shares ramamage
shares shareholding shareholding
Equity shares of £ 1 each
NSEIT Limited 27.,10,78,363 99% 27,10,78,363 99%
Series A equity shares of £ 1 each .
NSEIT Limited 2,010 100% 2,010 100%
Series B equity shares of ¥ 1 each
NSEIT Limited 1,000 100% 1,000 100%

There are no shares allotted as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares and no shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to
contracts without payment being received in cash nor has bought back any class of equity shares during five years immediately
preceding the balance sheet date.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Other equity
Securities premium
'Balance at the beginning of the year 5138.83 5,017.22
Add: Addition during the year - 121.41
Balance at the end of the year 5,138.63 5,138.61
Accumulated deficit
Balance at the beginning of the year (4.848.36) {4,882 .60}
Add: Net profit for the year 95.92 14.24
Balance at the end of the year _ (4,752.44) (4,648.36)

Other items of ather comprehensive loss
(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan actuarial gains/ (losses)

Balance at the beginning of the year (69.25) (44.53)
Add: Addition during the year (37.19) (24.72)
Balance at the end of the year (106.44) (69.25)

279.75 221.03

Nature of reserves:

Securities premium:

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares by the Company, The reserve can be utilized in
accordance with the provisions of section 52(2) of the Companies Act, 2013

Actuarial gain / {loss):

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset) comprises of actuarial gains and losses,
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12 (a)

12 (b)

13

14
14 (a)

Borrowings As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non-current borrowings

Unsecured
Loans from related parties
Loan from NSEIT Limited (*) (refer note 30) _ - 1,200.00
- 1,200.00
Less: Current maturities of long-term barrowings (refer nate 12(b)) - 1,200.00
Current borrowings
Unsecured
Loans from refaled parties
Loan from NSEIT Limited {*) {refer note 30) 2,500.00 1,750.00
2,500.00 1,750.00

("} Loan from NSEIT Limited: The Company has entered ih_!n short term loan agreement with its parent company far Z 3500.00. The loan is
repayable on 31 March 2024 and carries an interest rate of 12 month MCLR as published by SBI at the end of each month +0,5%.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non-current provisions
Provision far employee benefits (refer note 31)
Gratuity 518.20 406.87

518.20 406.97

Current financial liabilities
Trade payables (*)

Taotal cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 152.08 487 48
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.273.08 982.93
142517 1,450.41

(*) refer note 30

Due to micro, small and medium enterprises
The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Adl, 2006 { MSMED'"), The
disclosures pursuant to MSMED are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
The principal ameunt remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accounting year 121.35 457 .48

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid io any supplier at the end of each - =
accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Secton 16 or the MSMSED along - -
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during

each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay n making payment an74 -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day dunng e year) but without

adding the interest specified under the MSMED

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid af the ena of each accounting 30.74 5
year 7

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding = -
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section

23 of the MSMED-

The above information has been determined based on vendars identified by the Company an the basis of canfirmations received from tham.
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14 (b)

15

16

Current financial liabilities{continued)

Trade Payables outstanding Ageing Schedule 31 March 2023

Outstanding for the following period from the due date of the
payment
Notdue <1year 1-2years 2-3years More than3 Total
years

Particulars

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 30.74 121,35 - - - 152,09
small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 454.40 817.97 0.71 - - 1,273.08
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro enterprisas and small - - - - - -
enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro - - D = N
enterprises and small enterprises -

Total 485.14 939.32 0.71 a - 1.425.17

Trade Payables outstanding Ageing Schedule 31 March 2022

Outstanding for the following period from the due date of the
payment
Motdue <1year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 Total
years

Particulars

Total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and
small enterprises d
Tetal outstanding dues of creditors other than 48062 488 09 14.21 - - 982,93
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small - . - = . - -
enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micra - . - g 2
enterprises and small enterprises -

. 467.48 - - - 467.48

Total 480 62 &55 58 14.21 - - 145041

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Cther current financial liabilities
Capital creditors ) - 62.07
Accrued salanes and benefits 2,560.45 264434
2,560.46 2,706.41
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 31) :
Gratuity 143.47 110.06

Compensated absences : 476.80 276.80
620.27 386.86
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Other current liabilities

Contract Liability - - 355.42 251.04
Statutory dues payable 448,97 309.47
Revenue received in advance - 2.37

814.39 562.88

(This space has been intenhanaily left blank)
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Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2023

17 Revenue from operations

Sale of securily management services (*) 26,916,561 19,734.96
Sale of traded products 2,169.74 1,559.66
29,086.35 21,294.62

(*) Refer note 30

Disaggregation of revenues

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with cusiomers by contract-type. The Company believes that the below
disaggregation best depicis the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows from ecanomic faclors.

Revenues
Fixed price 7.051.32 5,491.44
Time and material 19,675.29 14,123.72
Praducts 2,169.74 1,559.66
Others 190.00 119.80
29,086.36 21,294.62
Timing of transfer of goeds or services
_ Révenue from products transferred to customers at a peint in time 2,169.74 1,5589.66
Revenue fram services transfered over time* 26,916.61 18,734.96
29,086.34 21,294.62

*The Company recognises revenue from annuity, using an input method to measure progress lawards camplete satisfaction of the service,
because the customer simultanecusly receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

18 Other income
Interest income 6.51 220
Interest income an refund of incoma tax 45.15 -
Gain on foreign exchange 143,85 -
Incame froem mutual fund an 2.07
Interest income an security deposits 526 574
Miscellaneous 2.98 12.90
207.26 22.91
18 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 17,199.58 12,402.94
Variable pay and parformance incentive 1.144.87 2.360.99
Contribution to provident and other funds 681.01 52524
Gratuity (refer nate 31) 178.07 236.03
Staff welfare and insurance 576.81 343,51
19,780.34 15,868.71
20 Finance costs
Interest on borrowings (refer note 30) 207.75 96.76
Interest on |lease liability 35.22 47 .56
24297 14432
21 Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer nota 5) 194.61 158,30
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note ) 132.78 114,41
327.39 272.711

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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22 CGther expenses (*)
Project expenses
Saftware and subscription
Rent {refer note 8)
Legal and professional fees®
Travelling and canveyance
Rates and taxes
Advertising and sales promotion
Communication
Office expenses
Recruitment and training
Provisicn for expected credit losses
Bad debts wrilten off
Met loss on foreign currency transactions
Miscellaneous*

Year ended

31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

1,843.26 1,132.45
672.36 584.03
345,61 253.58
§80.04 486,91

1,836.81 675.42
128.51 43.89
280.54 178,94
150.54 B5.78

86.38 79.58
307.23 176.26
4.63 9.43
105.27 74.82

- 8.09
165.75 143.85
6,607.12 3,943.03

(*) As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, aithough the Company fulfills the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read
with the Campanies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however there is no requirement to spend any amount by the
company under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act since the average profits of the the preceeding three financial years is negative.
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

committee.

*Auditor's remuneration (excludina abolicable taxes)
Statutary audit

Tax audit
Reimbursemernt of oul of pocke! expenses

23 Eamings per share
Net profit after tax attributable to existing equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares
Basic and diluled eamings per share

MNominal value par equity share ()

24 Income tax and deferred tax
24{a) Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss consists of:

(i) Amounts recognised in profit and loss
Current Income taxes
Deferred taxes
Foreign taxes pad

(i) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred taxes chargei{credit)

Total

42.50 36.50
2.00 2.00
.06 .58
47.56 39.08
95,92 14,24
271081373 27,10,81.373
0.04 0.01
1 |
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

353.88 39376
{160.19) (583.71)
385,22 106.01
(12.51) (8.31)
566.40 {92.25)
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24(a) Income tax and deferred tax [continued)

24(b)

24(c)

24{d)

24(e)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit/{Loss) before tax

Enacted income tax rate in India
Computed expected tax expense
Tax effect of:

-Fareign taxes paid

-Permanent differences

-Reversal of valuation allowance on deferred tax assets

-Others
Total

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Brought forward losses

The Company has brought forward losses of ¥ Nil lakhs.

Recognised deferred tax assets

Provision far gratuity
Provision far leave encashment

Provision far bonus and other employee incentives

Property, plant and equipment
Provision for Expected credit loss

Lease obligation (Nel effect of lease obligation and ROU asset)

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

674.84 (69.69)
25.17% 25.17%
169.84 (17.54)
385.22 106.01
7.88 32.00
- {204.41)
15,98 -
578.92 {83.94)
578.92 (83.94)
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

166.54 130.14
120.01 69.67
345,71 291.23
57.80 32.88
52.33 47.92
22.33 20.18
764.72 592.02

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temperary differences and carry forward losses can be utilized.

The Company has non-current tax assets of ¥ 31277 and ¥ 486.72 as at 31 Mareh 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively These assets
relate to tax deducted at scurce which are recoverable from the Government.

Mavement in temporary differences

Particulars '::uat @1 gt Recognised in Recognised in ::2; t 31 March
Profit & Loss  statement of OCI
Prowsion for gratuity 130.14 23.89 12.51 166.54
Prowvision for leave encashment 89,67 50.34 - 120.01
Provision for performance incentive 291.23 54.48 - 345.71
Property plant and equipment 3288 24,92 - 57.80
Provision for Expected credit lass 47 92 4.41 = §2.23
Leases 2048 2.15 - 22.33
592.02 160.19 12.51 764.72
Particulars ::21 2t 04 ord Recognised in Recognised in :;22“ 1 Warch
Profit & Loss  statement of OCI
Prowision for gratuity - 121.83 8.1 130.14
Provision for leave encashment - 69.67 - 69.67
Provision for performance incentive - 291.23 - 291.23
Property plant and equipment 3z.88 - iz2.88
Provision for Expected credit loss - 47.92 - 47.92
Leases - 20.18 - 20.18
- 583.71 2.1 592.02

(This space has peen intentionally st bank)
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25 Fair value measurements
Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at
{i} Financial instruments by category 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial assets
Amortized cost
{i] Trade receivables [refer note 8{a)) 5,609,28 5,049.23 6,609.28 6,049.23
(i) Cash and cash equivalents (refer nale 108.16 4186 108.16 41.66
8(h))
(i) Bank balances oiher than cash and 48.20 24.85 b 48.20 24.95
cash equivalents (refer note 8(c))
(v} Others financial assats (refer note 7 and 1,879.32 1.208.04 1,879.32 1,208.04
&{d))
8,644.96 7,323.87 8.644.96 ~ 7,323.87
Fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Mandaterily measured at FVTPL
(i} Investments in mutual funds = = # -
8,644.96 7,323.87 = 8,644,96 7,323.87
Financial liabilities
Amortlzed cost
(1) Borrawings (rafér note 12) 2,500.00 1.750.00 2.500.00 1,750.00
(ii) Lease liability (refer nate ) 616,14 427,59 © 81614 427.50
(i) Trade payables (refer note 14(a)) 1,42517 145041 142517 1,450.41
{iv} Other financial liabilities (refer note 2,560,486 270641 2 560.485 2,706.41
14{b}}
7,101.77 6,334.41 7.101.77 6,334.41
The carrying amaunt af trade receivables, cash and cash aquivalents, bank deposits, unbilled revenue. trade payables and othar
financial habiliies considerad to be same as fair values, due to their short term nature
The falr value of the financial assets and liabiliies is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction batween wiling parties, other than in a forced or ligudabon sale.
{ii} Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Tra tar value of the financial assets and hatxiibes 15 ncluded at e amowrk at whch Ne INSTNJMenT Couls e exchanged in a cument
tarsachion between willing partes, cther than in a forced of liquidation sale. The following memacs anc assumptions were used to
astivr ate the fair values.
Tna far value of obligations under finance leases s estimated by discounting future cash flows usmg rates curently available for
debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities,
26 Financial instruments - sk management
Trne Campany s activities axposa 1 o the following nsks:
ra) credit risk
b) buidty risk and
o) markel risk.
Risk management framewaork
The Company's Board of Directors has the overall responsibiity for the astablishment and owversgnt of the Company's risk
=anagemert framework, The Compary's risk management policies are established 1o Kertdy anc aiyse e nsks faced by the
Company to set appropriate nsk limits and controls and to monitor nisks: and adherance 1o mds Sl management policies ard
systems are reviewed regulary to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's actietas The Campany hrough its
ranng and management standards and procedires, aims to mantan a discipined and constructve cortral environment in which
al employses understand their roles and obligations. )
26{a) Credit risk

Cregnt nsk 15 tha nsk of financial |oss to the Company if a custemer of counterparty to a financal msirumert fails to meel its
zortractual obligations. and arises principally fram the Company's receivables from customers and lcans orovided to the related
parhes. -

Tre carnpng amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade recelvables and loans:

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characiaristics of each cusiomer. The Company has
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's
standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company's review includes axternal ratings. if they are
avallacte. financial statements. credit agency informanan, industny mformanon ana in some cases Sank references.

Further to manage this sk, the Company periodically reviews the financial relability of its custormers taking into account the
financial condition, current econamic trends and analysis of histonecal pad debts and ageing of accounts recaivanles. To measure
the expecled credit losses, frade receivablas have been grouped based on the days past due
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Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - trade receivables and unbilled revenue

Amount (¥ in lakhs)

Loss allowance as at 01 April 2021 180.96
Changes in allowance
Additional allowance made during 1he year 943
Allowance written off during the year 74.82
Loss allowance as at 31 March 2022 190.39
Changes in allowance
Additional @llowance made duning (he year 4.63
Allowance written off during the year 105,27
Utlisation during the year (82.39)
Loss allowance as at 31 March 2023 207.90° -

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cradit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with barks and with high eredit
ratings assigned by intematicnal and domestic credit rating agenciss.

26(b] Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficuty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by dalivering cash or another financial asset The Company's epproach to managing liquidity Is to ensure, as far as
passible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both narmal and siressed .conditions,
without incurming unaccepiable lasses or risking damage Lo the Compary's reputation.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalerds on the basis of expecled
cash flows. The Company's objective is 1o maintain a balance in batween cash outflow and imflow. Usuatly the excess of funds is
invested in shart term mutual funds and fixed cdeposits, This is generally camied out m accordance with practica and limits set by the
Cempany. These limits vary 1o 1ake into account the liquidity of the market in which the Company operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The fellowing are the remaining cortractual matunbes of financial hablibes al the reporing date. The amounts are gross and
undiscounted contractual cash flow, and include contractual inlerest payments.

_Clrrying value Less than 1 year 1-2years Ilmg:l::n 2

Az ot 31 March 2023
Non-denvative financial liabilities :
11} Trace payables (refer nate 14{a}) 142517 142517 - =
it Laase kahility {refer note &} 616.13 219.79 108 41 199,93
juy Other financial liabilities  (refer nate 2.580.458 2,580 456 . -
Tapy )
iiv; Bacrowings (refer nate 12) 2.500.00 2 500,00
As st 31 March 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities
\i} Trade payables (refer note 14(g}) 1,450.41 550.15 - -

iy Lease habifity {refer nole 8§ 427.59 11545 83.02 229.42
i Tther financial liabilities (refer note 2.706.41 270841 - -
b
I\ Barrowings (refer note 121 1750.00 175000 - 2

26(c) Market risk

Liawet nsk s Me nsk thal changes n market pnces, such as foreign exchange rates and inerest rates and ety onces, which will
arect the Company's income or the value of its haldings of financial instruments, The cbjective of market nsk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceplable parameters. while optimising the returm.

1} Currency risk

Tne Company is exposed to currency nsk to the extent that there is a mismalch between the curencies » wruch sales and |pans
are cenominated and the funclional curency of the Campany. The functional currency of the Company 15 prmanly INR. The
curencies in which these transactions are primanly denominated are USD, AED, CAD. SAR. slc.

Managament monitors the movement in foreign currency and the Company's exposure in each of the foreign currency. Based on
ihe analyses and siudy of movement in foreign currency, the Company decides Lo exchange its foreign cumency

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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26(c) Market risk (continued)
Exposure to currency risk
The summary quartitalive data about the Company's exposure to currency risk as raporled to the management of the Company is
as follows:
As at As al
Particuiars 31 March 2023 34 March 2022
As al 31 March 2023
Financial assels

Trade receivables [CAD) 0.82 0.60
Trada receivables [SAR] 22.08 43.71
Trade receivablas [USD] 19.01 44,00
Trade receivables [AED] 85,36 =
Financial liabilities

Trade payable [CAD] {0.20) (0.06)
Trade payabla [SAR] (12.28) (16.04)
Trade payable [USD)] {083} (1.48)
Trade payable [AED] {4.73) {2.46)
Net exposure in respect of recognized assets and liabilitles 109.22 68,26

The following significant exchange rates have been applied :-
— Year-endspotrate

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
CAD 60.71 60.28
SAR 21.88 2011
AED 2237 20.58
usp 8216 75.51

Sensitivity analysis .

A reassnably passibla sirengthening (weakening) of the USD. SAR, and AED against INR at 31 March 2023 wauld have affecled
tha maasurement of financial instruments denaminated in foreign curency and affecied equity and profit or lass by the amounts
shawn belaw. This analysis assumes that all ather vanables, in particuler interest rates, remain constant.

Impact an profit after tax
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

CAD sansitivity
INRACAD - |Increase by 1% aar . 0.01
INRSLALD - Decrease Dy 1% iRt 10.01)
SAR sensitivity
INRIGAR - Increase by 1% 210 028
INRLUSAR - Decrease by 1% (0.0 {0.28}
USD Sensitivity .
INRASSD - Increase by 1% one 0.43
INFRAUST - Decrease by 1% 10181 {043)
AED Senaitivity
INRIAED - Incraase by 1% 81 {0.02)
INRJAED - Decrease by 1% (et 0.02

I} interest rate risk

irterest rate nsk «$ the nsk that the fair value of future casn flows of a financial mstrument will luctuate becsuse of changes in
marvel rierest rates,

{a) Liabdlities

The Cormpany's fixed rate bormowing 1s nat subject ta interest rate nsk as defined in Ind AS 107, Fmancal Instruments - Disclosures’
since nasther the camying amount ner the future cash flows will flucluate due to change in market inleres! rates Tha company does
not have any fixed rale borrowings.

The Commany's vanable rate borrowing 1s subject to interest rate nsk. Below is the overall exposure of the bomoang

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Vanabie rate borrowing 2,500.00 1,750.00
2,500.00 1,750.00

SensHivity 1
Profil or 1055 1S sensitive 10 higher / lower nterest expense from borrowings as a result of changes n mierest rates
Interest rate - |ncrease by 100 basis points (100 bps) 25.00 12.00
interes! rate - Decrease by 100 basis peints {100 bps) {25,001 §12.000
(8] Assers

The Company's fixed deposits carmy a fixed rate of interest and therefore, are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS
107 since nerher the camyng amaunt nor the future casn flows will fluctuate because of a cnange N market FMerest Tates.
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27

Capital management

The Company's ebjective is lo maintain a slrong credit raling health caplial ratios and establish a capital structure that would
maximise the ratum la stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and aquity.

The managemenl reviews the capital structure regularly and balances the Company's overall capital structure through issue of new
shares. The overall strategy remains urichanged from the pricr financial year and the Company is not subject lo extermnally imposed

capilal requrements,
Gearing ratio

Tha Company manitors its capital using gearing ratia. which is net debt aivided to total equity as given below:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Bomrowings 2,500.00 1,750.00
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 08,16 41,66
Net debt 2,391.84 1,708.34
Tatal equity 2.990.56 2,931.84
Gearing ratio 0.80 0.58
Total equity includes all capital and raserves of tha Company that are managed as capital
28 Commitments
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Bank quarantees issued to customer 43,53 -

Derivative i and

hedged foreign currency exposure

The Company is nol using dervative instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its exposure to movements
in foreign exchange and interest rates. The details of flems that are denominated in foreign curency are as follows
i As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Trade Receivable Trade Recelvable

Particulars In lakhs # Inlakhs in lakhs ¥in lakhs
CAD 0.82 49,64 060 38,42
SAR 22.08 483.06 4371 878,05
uso 1901 156227 44 00 33213
AED 85,36 1.909 43 - -

As at 31 March 2023 As at 311 March 2022
Trade Payable Trade Payable
_ Particulars in lakhs ¥ in lakhs inlakhs  Pinlakhs
AR 10.20) £12.31) 10.09; 13.92)
SAR (12.28) (268,78) (15.04; (322.55)
ust (0.83) (68.37) (1.48) {112.04)
48D (4.73) {105.72) {2.48) 150.52)

30 Related party disclosures

0fa) Names of related parties and description of relationship:

(2] Parties where control exists:
{1} Ultimate Holding Company
{ii} Intermediate Helding Company

(i) Mokeng Company

(V] Felow suosimary Company

Maticnal Stock Exchange of ndia Limited

NSE Investments Limited (formerly known as NSE Strategic Investment Corporation

Lirnited)
NSEIT Limited

MNSE Data & Anatytics Limited (formerty known as DotEx Intemabona Lamted)

(v} Fefiow subsichary Company NSE Clearing Limded (formerly known as National Securities 'Clearng Zarporation
Limited)

(w) Feliow sunsicary Company NSEIT (US) Ine.

(wil} Fedow sutsachary Company CX10 Technologies Private Limited

(b} Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

(I} Key management personnel:

Executive Dweclor Navinkumar S Katian
Sameer Arvind Shelke

Non Exective Diractor Anantharaman Sresnivasan
Guishan Rai

Company Secretary

Chandrasekaran Ramakrishnan

Vaibnav Vijay Kullkami

Chief Executive Cfficer (CEQ) Sameer Shelke
Chuef Operatng Officer (COO0) and Whale-  Navinkumar S Katian
tme Drestst

Chief Financial Officer{CFO)

Fresaent Saes,

Pattamadal Sundaram Suryanarayanan (ceased effective 31.03.2023)
Maru_sh Kumar Lakhotia (Appointed as an 01,04 2023)
Saker verma (Resigned 15 July 2022;
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30(b) Summary of transactions with related parties, during the year, is as follows:

Parties referred to in (a) above

Parties referred to in (b) above

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1. Revenue
MSEIT Limited 288.21 383.05
Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited 1.875.74 1,595.94
MNSE Data & Analytics Limited 3151 | 47.87
MSE Clearing Limited 3418 421
2. Unsecured loan transactions
Loan received
MNSEIT Limited 1,800.00 600,00
Loan repaid
NSEIT Limited 1,050,00 £0.00
1. Expenses
Rent
Mr. Sameer Shelke - -
MNSEIT Limited 896.15 96,15
Interest on borrowings
MNSEIT Limited 207.75 96.76
Legal and professional
NSEIT Limited 1.50 34.45
Cost of traded products
MSEIT (US) Inc. " 44.04

30 Related party disclosures {continued)
30{b) Summary of transactions with related parties, during the year, Is as

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4,33 4.88

4R ation ta key gerial p
Pattamacdai Sundaram Suriyanarayanan
Sameer Shelke
Nawirkumar S Konan
Guisnan Ra:

Chandrasekaran Ramaknshnan
Saket Verma

30{c) Balances payable to ! receivable from related parties:

1. Loan repayable

MNSEIT Umited

Unbilled receivables

NSEIT Umrited

NSE Cleanng Lminag

Mational Stock Excnange of India Limited
Trade receivables

MNSEIT Limited

NSE Dats & Araiytics Limited

NSE Claanng Lemided

Natonal Stoce Cachange of India Limited
Trade payanles

NSEIT Limites

NSEIT (U5 tne

ol

»

Nates:

Parties referred to in {b) above

‘Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

87,16 104 85
32025 543595
77.34 240,82
14.50 775
14.50 775
£1.83 *13.13

As at As &

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

2 500.00 i ke o
- 125

- 350

27.20 146,13
3414 -

3 175

352 34
522.53 23634

- 1132

Managenal remureranon does nal indude gratuity and compensated absences since these have been provided nasea on ne

actuanal valuanon camed ot for the Company as a whole,

M Gratuity and other employee benefits
31(a} Defined contribution plan

The amount recogruzed as an expense lowards cantnbution to pravident fund, social security and medicare amounted to # 681.01
lakhs and ¥ 525.24 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respactivaly,

31{b) Defined benefit plan

The Compary has a defined benefit plan (viz . Graluly plan) covering eligiole employees in accordance wih the “ayment of
Graluity Act. 1972 for Indian employees and UAE Labowr Laws for Middle East employees. The Company's liabiity s actuanally
determined ,usng the projected unit credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial gains / insses are recognsed wnder ather

Somprehans e FCITE,
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31(b) Defined benefit plan {continued)

A Reconciliation of the net defined benefit lability: Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginring of the year 517.02 280.01
Current service cast 158,28 76,67
Past servica cost - 113.48
Interest cost 19.78 11.499
Actuanal (gains) losses recognised
Actuaria (gain) /loss - experience adjusiment 64.59 69.55
Actuarial {gain) / loss — financial assumptions (14.95) (2.64)
Benefits paid (83.06) (32.04)
Balance at the end of the year 661.67 517.02
Current 143.47 110.06
Non current 518,20 406.97
B Expense recognised in statement of comprehensive income: Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cosl 158.28 76.67
Interest cost 19.78 11.99
Re-measurement - actuarial gain recognised in OCI 49,65 56.92
Met gratuity cost 20T 15558

C  Actuarial assumptions

Interest rate
Incia 7.158% 5.80%
Middle East 3.00% 3.00%
Salary increase
India - 6.00% 2 6.00%
Middle East 3.00% 3.00%
Altritin rate ) 26.00% 26.00%
Retirement age 60 yaars 6 years
Martality rate TALM (2012-14) IALM {2012-14}

ubmate utmate
The estimates of "uture salary increases considered in acluanal valuation takes inlo account inflation serionty promation ad other
relevant fac1ors such as supgly and demand factors in the emplayment market.

D Sensitivity analysis .
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanal assumptions, holding other assumphons
canstant, wodd have aTactad the definad benefit obfigation by the amaunts shown below

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discourt rate (100 hps movamant) 87837 544 95 53558 494 88
Future salary growtn  * = movement) 649,92 673.97 49829 53708
E Expected future cash outflow: As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Withen 1 year 14347 it
c BFR years 14373 " -
2 -3years 119 81 R0
3-d years . 116.98 . ag 52
4 - 5 years 111.94 80 24
5-10 years 389.08 278 AN

The Company expects o connbute ¥ Nil lo its defined benefit plans during the next fiscal year, as the gratuity liability is unfunded

32 Segment reporting
Based on the “managemert approach” as defined In Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, Crief Executive Office of the Company nas
been idertified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Company is pimarly engaged in data secunty management
services ncuding appiication secunty, IT nsk management, dentity management and wdnerabdity management. The nsks and
returns of the Company are predominantly determined by its sendce line and the Company's current activities fall within a single
segment, Accordingly, no further disclosures ather than those already included in the financial statements are required under Ind
AS 108 - Cperating Segments

32(a) Geographical information 3
The geoqgraphic information analyses the Company's revenue by the Company's country of domicile and other countries In
presenting the geograph< infermaten segment revenue has been based on the geographic locaton of customers,

Year ended Year enaea
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Incha 10.727.15 895118
United States & Canaca 9087 38 [ A7 e

Migdle East dsia 9.271.84 582077
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(Al amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs{Z), except share dala and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

32(a) Geographical information (continued)
Assels and liabilities used in the Company business are not identfied to any of the reportable segments, as these are used
interchangeably between ihe segments. The management believes Lhal it is currently not practicable to provide segment
disclosures relaung to total assels and labilities since meanngful segregation of the available data is onerous.

32(b) Information about major customers
Revenue from ane customer individually contributing mare than 10% of the total revenue amounted to ¥ 306584 and ¥ 2191 67 for
Ihe year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively

32(c) Assets and liabilities related to contract with cu rs:
Particulars Note = 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade Recaivable B{a) - - 560928 6,049.23
Revenue received in advance 16 - 237
Unbilled Revenue B{d) 1,675.89 982.75
Contract Assets 9(b) 1.412.41 1.173.41
Cantract Liability 16 365.42 251.04

33  Financial Ratios

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 % Change
Current ratio Current Assets Current liabilities 1.27 1.25 1 1%
Debt equity ratiof1) Debt (Barrowing) Total Equity ; 0.84 0.80 40%
Debt sarvice coverage ratia{2) EBIT+Depraciation+T Debt (Barowing) 0.48 018 166%
ax
Return cn equity ratio{3) Profit for the year Tatal Equity 0.02 {0.00) B650%
Trade receivables tumover Revenue from Trade Recaivables 4.40 352 25%
ratia aperations
Trade payablas tumaver Met Credit Purchases Trade Payables+ 5,80 352 LLE
ratiaf4) Accrued Expenses
Liability
Net capital tumaover ratai 51 Revenue from Tolal Equity 9.73 726 345
operations
MNet profit rabio(€) Profit for the year Reveruea from C.2% 0.0% £
- operations
Rewm on captat emoicyes: ! Profn Before tax + Total Equey+ 15.2% £.9% 1570%
- Fmnance cost Deabt{Bomowing)
Relurn on investmeant(d} Prafit for the year Total Equity 2.0% -0.4% -B50%

{1] The Change is on account of the micrease n borrowings from the holding company.

{2) The Change s on account of the norease in borrowings from the holding company during the year and ncrease in proft margns n
the current year due to growth in revenue

[3] There s @ increase m profe n e cument year due lo signficant ncrease n revenue durng the year,

{4 There is an ncrease due 10 business growih which resulled in higher revenue,

(5) The increase is on account of the merease in revenue wheraas the lotal equity remained same except due to increase m profits.

(6} Thera is a merease = reverue 3n< profis in cumant year compared [0 previous year.
(7] There & a nereass bass change n profit numbers other equity and debt postion
18) There is 2 norease bass change in profit numbers.

34 Qther Statutory Information
W Additional disclosures and acdhonal nfarmation as required under Schedule 1l ta the Act to the extent eiher "nil’ or “not applcable”
has not been furmished

_ The Company did not have any material ransactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or
(1) Section 560 of Comparies At 1956 during th financial year,
The Company does not nawe ary ransaction which s not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surendered x

{iil} disclosed as income durng the year n the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as, search o survey o any
other relevant provisions o the |ncome Tax Act, 1961,

(iv) The Compary is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act. 2013] or
consorum thereof o other lender r accordance with the guidelines on wilful defauliers issued by the Resarja Bary of Inta
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(All amount are in Indian Rupees lakhs(}, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

34 Other Statutory Information{continued)

Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrawed funds or share pramium or any ather sources or kind of
funds) by the Cempany ta or in any cther persen(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries’) with the understanding,

(¥} whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company

(Uitimate Beneficiardes) The Company has nol received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with lhe understanding that the
Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend ar invest in other persons or enlities identified by or an behalf of the Company
{*URimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Utimate Beneficiaries.

(vi) The Company has nat traded or invesled in Crypto curency or Virual Currency during the financial year.

The Cempany doas not have any charges or satisfaclion which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Campany does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated ar pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.

{ix) The Cempany has not entered inta any long term contracts andfor derivative transactions during the year.

Pravious year's comparatives have been regroupad/reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's presentation.

(%)
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